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RFP 1819-224 Data Warehouse 
 

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS 
 

1. Question:  Page 21, “Experience and Expertise” items g, h and I specify an “assessment systems”.  
We assume these are intended to be read as “data warehouse systems”.  Correct?  
Answer:  Correct, please remove all wording pertaining to assessment systems and replace with 
Data Warehouse Systems. 
 

2. Question:  Is Skyward also your SIS? If not, what?  
Answer:  Yes. 
 

3. Question:  Page 23, “Desired Functionality: ETL and Data Warehouse”.  Only one automated 
source (Skyward for assessment) is specified.  It’s implied, but not stated, other data (such as gifted 
and special education) will be part of the system.  Just to confirm, you expect to ETL student 
(demographic), teacher, course and schedule data.  Correct? 
Answer:  Yes. 
 

4. Question:  Do you expect to include attendance data in the warehouse?  
Answer:  Not at this time. 
 

5. Question:  Do you expect to include behavior data in the warehouse. 
Answer:  Not at this time. 

 
6. Question:  On page 24, item 22, will sample anonymized data for the New Mexico Assessment 

reports be provided to vendors prior to the scheduled demonstrations? 
Answer:  No, we do not have any sample data.  The demonstrations may be scheduled if the 
evaluation committee requests that of the Selected Finalists. 

 
7. Question:  What were the circumstance that led to CMS canceling the Data Warehouse RFP issued 

in August 2018 and reissuing a Data Warehouse RFP now?? 
Answer:  It was in the best interest of the district to cancel the RFP issued in August due to time 
restraints. 

 
8. Question:  We understand that CMS partnered with Alpine Achievement in 2018 for data a data 

aggregation tool.  Would the data warehouse sought in this RFP interface with Alpine in any 
capacity? 
Answer:  No. 
 

9. Question:  If yes, in what capacity would the two systems interface? 
Answer:  See response to question 8. 
 

10. Question:  What is the anticipated budget for this project? 
Answer:  Clovis Municipal Schools budget for this project is under $50,000. 
 

11. Question:    What is your preference in selecting the technologies, are you open to hear any Open 
Source Technologies? 
Answer:  There is no preference and yes we are open. 
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12. Question:  Are you already in cloud?  If it is not, are you planning to or are there any restrictions to 
move to cloud? 
Answer:  Currently we use Google. 
 

13. Question:  Can you provide an architectural diagram of current systems, how they’re related and 
what platforms the original data is stored (flat files, RDBMS, Web, MoSQL, etc.)? 
Answer:  Skyward, CSV and Excel. 
 

14. Question:  In the RFP “Experience and Expertise” section it focuses more on vendor’s experience 
in providing Data Warehouse solutions for school districts, we have not directly worked with 
schools, but we implemented Data Warehouse solutions in learning and education providers and 
cities and counties across USA.  Would you encourage us to participate bidding process? 
Answer:  Yes, all qualified and experienced firms are encouraged to participate in the Data 
Warehouse RFP process. 
 

15. Question:  Please elaborate on what is expected as certification under Appendix “E, Campaign 
Contribution Disclosure Form”? What are all the other required documents which needs to be 
submitted along with the response document?  Can you please kindly provide a separate pdf.doc for 
the certificates and documents, which would help us to clearly identify and attest with the response 
doc? 
Answer:  Appendix E-Campaign Contribution Disclose Form must be completed whether or not 
any contributions have been made to any of the District Board of Education.  If no contributions 
were made the bottom of page 33 needs to be completed and included in the proposals.  Appendix A 
through Appendix G are required documents and must be included in the proposal; these documents 
are at the end of the RFP document on pages 28-35. 
 

16. Question:  Can you please elaborate on types of reports that you are planning to execute using the 
reporting Platform? 
Answer:  Trend reports of performance overtime for groups and individuals, bar graphs, pie charts, 
sub-group performance, individual student portfolios, visual classification of performance levels for 
sub-groups. 
 

17. Question:  What is the current visualization software utilized in your organization for reporting? 
Answer:  CMS has utilized Alpine Data Warehouse in the past. 
 

18. Question:  Can services outlined in the RFP can be done at offshore while all 
meetings/collaboration sessions conducted face-to-face at an onsite location at CMS district? 
Answer:  Yes. 
 

19. Question:  Do you have any specific budget allocated for this project? 
Answer:  Clovis Municipal Schools budget is under $50,000 for this project. 
 

20. Question:  What are the possible input files (flat files, csv files, excel files, database files)? 
Answer:  CSV and Excel 
 

21. Question:  Do we need to extract the data from files only or Data bases or both? 
Answer:  No 
 

22. Question:  Do you have any mapping document from source to destination, if yes please share? 
Answer:  No 
 

23. Question:  What will be the target DWH (SQL Server, MySQL, Oracle or else). 
Answer:  No 
 

24. Question:  Do you have any sample reports or currently using reports? 
Answer:  Yes 
 

25. Question:  What is your existing reporting systems? 
Answer:  Skyward 
 

26. Question:  How many reports and dashboards we need to generate? 
Answer:  This would be how many different repost do you need just list the ones we do currently. 
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27. Question:  DO we need to do data integration or along with data quality? 

Answer:  Both 
 

28. Question:  Can you share the KPI’s list, if you have? 
Answer:  Unknown—This question is not understood. 
 

29. Question:  Do we need to create the Data Marts/aggregate tables for reports on top of DWH for 
better performance? 
Answer:  Yes 
 

30. Question:  Does existing student database reside in one database or different database 
Answer:  One 
 

31. Question:  Can you list out others domains apart from(assessments)? 
Answer:  Unknown-This question in not understood. 
 

32. Question:  What type of SCD’s (Slowly changing dimensions) we need to use in EDW.  
Answer:  Unknown. 
 

33. Question:  How much data you have in source systems or files.  
Answer:  It would depend on the amount of fields that were extracted. 
 

34. Question:  Dashboards need to display real-time data or near real time data, what is the maximum 
data lag difference. (Ex: if students wrote the exams after one week results will be announced, we 
need to display reports within hours or 2 days later in dashboards)  
Answer:  We would expect reports to be available no more than a week after data was uploaded for 
an existing template. 
 

35. Question:  What of SSO we need to implement?  
Answer:  Google 
 

36. Question:  Do we need to send email alerts to all the users regarding the reports/dash boards?  
Answer:  No 
 

37. Question:  What type of aggregations you required?  
Answer:  Unknown 
 

38. Question:  What type of hierarchy roles you have?  
Answer:  Teacher, Administrator, Super User/Manager 
 

39. Question:  What type of dashboard’s need to develop like (standard, dynamic)?  
Answer:  refer static and dynamic 
 

40. Question:  What type of secure web form need to build?  
Answer:  Unknown 
 

41. Question:  What is mean by disaggregate in your context in the visualization/dashboards?  
Answer:  Data should be able to be broken down into a variety of groups for comparison. For 
example, gender, grade level, English Learner or Special Education status, etc. 

 
42. Question:  Re User Population - confirm only 5 data administrators will have access, or do you mean 

600 staff + 5 data system administrators would have access? 
Answer:  600 staff plus the 5 data system administrators will have access. 
 

43. Question:  Assumption is that there is already a district level unique identifier for a student which is 
used by all the sources. Is this correct, or would fuzzy/probabilistic matching leveraging names, 
addresses, and other criterion be required? 
Answer:  Correct we have unique identifiers per student. 

 
44. Question:  How many years of history would need to be loaded? Do you have a rough estimate for 

number of records to be loaded? Do you have a rough estimate of amount of raw data involved 
(e.g., N gigabytes, terabytes)? 
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Answer:  Clovis Municipal Schools will need to upload 5 years of data for 8000 students for with 
an estimated amount of 50 different test files (Some monthly, some quarterly, and some annually).  
No estimate of amount of raw data. 
 

45. Question:  Re Req #22 "CMS requires Webinar Demo of product with New Mexico Assessment 
Reports." Is this requirement for the demo "Proposal Presentations and Demonstrations" to be 
delivered between 6/3/19 and 6/17/19? If so, will you provide some sample data and a sample of the 
Assessment Report? 
Answer:  No, we do not have any sample data.  The demonstrations may be scheduled if the 
evaluation committee requests that of the Selected Finalists. 
 

46. Question:  Re: Req #1 - “. secure web form" - can you estimate how many forms would be needed, 
approximate number of data elements which need to be exposed/inputted on such a web form? 
Answer:  Approximately a dozen forms. 
 

47. Question:  Re Req #7 - "standard set of easy to use, high-impact reports...". Approximately how 
many reports are envisioned? 
Answer:  Approximately 8 to 10 reports. 
 

48. Question:  Does CMS collect any personal data about EU residents that may require GDPR 
compliance? 
Answer:  No 
 

49. Question:  Assumption is that Skyward SIS will be the only transactional source system, and that 
only student level assessment data is in scope. Please confirm. Will we be able to connect directly to 
the Skyward database? 
Answer:  Yes it is accurate that Skyward is the only transactional source system.  Nightly 
automated uploads can be scheduled. 
 

50. Question:  Describe what types of data is contained in the CSV files - is this just assessment data? 
Answer:  Yes. 
 

51. Question:  To provide you with the best possible outcome during your selection process, will Clovis 
Municipal Schools please grant a one-week extension from May 23, 2019 to May 30, 2019? 
Answer:  Clovis Municipals Schools will send out an Addendum extending the submission of 
proposals to May 29, 2019 at 2:00 p.m. Mountain Standard Time. 

 
END OF QUESTIONS & ANSWERS 

 


